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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The 0ld Merchants and Farmers Bank is located in the midst of the downtown commercial
district on South Main Strxeet in Emporia. The building is a one-story, concave mansard-
roof brick structure set on a low brick foundation. Eclectic in style, the edifice was
erected in 1902.

The west facade contains the principal entrance. The yellow brick segmental-arch
doorway consists of a simply framed, glass-paned and paneled double door surmounted by a
nulti~paned, crisscross-patterned transom. The docrway is flanked by yellow brick segmental-
headed windows containing 1/1 hung sash. A simple recessed brick panel is found under the
windows. Paired brick pilasters define each of the facade's three bays. Each bay
features a recessed spandrel panel of yellow brick containing a red brick insert. A
vellow brick corbelled course runs the length of the facade above the panels. The most
noteworthy feature of the facade is a galvanized sheet-metal cornice which may have been
manufacturad by H. T. Klugel, an architectural sheet metal concern located in Emporia.
Typical of Klugel's work, the cornice consists of paired brackets and modillions supporting
a molded fascia. MAbove the fascia rises a central pediment dated "1902." The facade is
laid in stretcher bond.

The south elevation consists of four bays, with 4/4 hung-sash, segmental-headed
windows. The noxrth and south elevations, laid in seven—course Imerican bond, are both
ornamented by a finely executed corbelled brick cornice. Fenrestration on the north
elevation consists of three windows identical to those found on the east elevation. An
exterior chimney stack is found between the northwestern windows. The rear (east)
elevation, also executed in seven-course American hond, remains unpierced.

The two-room interior is undistinguished and is presently in a state of neglect and

disrepair. Plans for its restoration are currently under consideration by the Greensvilie
County Historical Society which hopes to make the building its headguarters.

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The nominated property, approximately 2500 square feet, is sligntly larger than the
property conveyed from the Wood family by deed to the Farrmers & Merchantse Bank on 25
rebruary 1902. According to the 1948 deed of title, the property is bound on the north
by the Woodruff lot, on the east by land formerly owned by the Emporia Fsanit Co., on
the south by an alley, and en the west by Main Street.
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STATEMENT CF SIGNIFICANCE

The 01d Merchants and Farmers Bank building exemplifies the architectural elaboration
characteristic of even the most diminutive commercial buildings of the early -twentieth
century. With its mansard roof and richly ornamented shzet-metal cornice, the building
is a miniature version of the imposing stores and office blocks that gave turn-of-the-—
century Fmerica‘s main stroets such visually delightful pomposity. Although its interior
suffered alterations to accommodate varicus uses, the building's exterior is essentially
unchanged from the construction date of 1902, proudly displayed in the pediment atop the

cornice.

William Edward Bailey, a prominent Emporia businessman, was the bank's first president.
In 1914 the bank had outgrown the space and moved to another locaticn on South Main Street.
The building wag then purchased by Etheldred Peyton Turner, who converted it into law
offices and shared it with L. Ralph Slagle. During the years of his law practice, Turnex
was elected county Commonwealth's attorney and was president of the bar for the Third

Judicial Circuit.

. In 19248 the Town of Emporia purchased the building from Mrs. Turner. The public
library, founded in 1931 by the Woman's Club, had outgrown the room provided for them in
the courthouse and moved into the old bank building. A new library was built in 1977.

In May 1977 the Greensville County Historical Society petitioned the county Board of
Supervisors, asking "that the buildirg ke given, or leased to it..." In November 1977
the building was deeded. to the Historical Society for use as a headguarters, museum, and
archives.

Althiough built as a narrow one-story structure, the building achieves a sense of
monumentality through the use of a mansard roof and a decorative Klugel-type cornice. H. T.
Klugel came to Emporia in 1902 and established a sheet metal works that specialized in
dccorative cornices. Although not documented, the bank building’s cornice is typical of
Klugel's design. The contrasting usc of red and yellow brick within a classical vocabulary
contributes to the building's sense c¢f urbanity.
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